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 1  BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT
   
 2  AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE
   
 3 
    APPLICANT:                     ) DOCKET NO. TBA
 4  HARQUAHALA                     ) LS CASE NO. TBA
                                   )
 5  PROJECT:                       )
    COPIA POWER PROJECT            )PREFILING CONFERENCE
 6  _______________________________)
   
 7 
    At:       Phoenix, Arizona
 8 
    Date:     April 23, 2024
 9 
   
10 
   
11 
   
12 
   
13 
   
14             REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
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                  Court Reporting, Video & Videoconferencing
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24                                     Arizona CR No. 50695
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 1                      INDEX TO EXHIBITS
   
 2  NO.          DESCRIPTION                     IDENTIFIED
   
 3  1            Map of the proposed
                 gen-tie route; 1 page
 4 
    2            Map of the proposed sign
 5               locations for notice of the
                 hearing; 1 page
 6 
   
 7 
   
 8 
   
 9 
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11 
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 1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
   
 3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
   
 4  Committee, commencing at 3:00 p.m. on the 23rd day of
   
 5  April, 2024, with all participants appearing via
   
 6  videoconference.
   
 7 
   
 8  BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman
   
 9 
   
10  APPEARANCES:
   
11  For the Applicant:
   
12       CROCKETT LAW GROUP
         By: Jeffrey Crockett
13       2198 East Camelback Road, Suite 305
         Phoenix, Arizona 85016
14 
    Also Present:
15 
         Garret Bean, Copia Power
16       Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford
         Amanda Hamilton, Copia Power
17       Matt Garlinghouse, Redwood Energy
         Brian Lynch, Redwood Energy
18       Teresa O'Neil, Kimley-Horn
         Dallas Pugh, Copia Power
19       Brett Stroup, Kimley-Horn
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
   
24 
   
25 
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Now is the time set for the
 2  prefiling conference for the Harquahala Complex Project.
 3  I'll take appearances, please.
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Chairman Stafford, good
 5  afternoon.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the
 6  future applicant, Harquahala Complex HoldCo, LLC, and
 7  we've got -- I'll just quickly introduce some of the
 8  folks from our team, Amanda Garlinghouse [sic], Garret
 9  Bean, Brian Lynch, Dallas Pugh, Brett Stroup and Teresa
10  O'Neil are from Kimley-Horn.  And did I get Brian Lynch?
11  Brian and Matt work together at Redwood Energy.  I think
12  that's everyone we're expecting.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  And do you
14  expect any intervenors for this matter?
15                MR. CROCKETT: We do not.  This -- this
16  area, Chairman Stafford, you'll be very familiar with it.
17  Affiliates of Harquahala Complex, HV Sunrise, we had two
18  prior hearings, CECs 201 and 211 were issued for those
19  projects, and they're -- this project is adjacent to
20  those projects.  So we are very familiar with the area,
21  and do not anticipate at this time having intervenors.
22                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Let's see, I do
23  have two exhibits, there's --
24                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: -- Prefiling 1 and
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 1  Prefiling 2.  Would you like to --
 2                MR. CROCKETT: Yes, for the record,
 3  Prefiling Exhibit 1 is the map of the proposed gen-tie
 4  route.  And, as you can see, it's outlined in green,
 5  Chairman Stafford.  It's really a looped line.  And so
 6  they're not alternative routes, that's -- that's one
 7  project.  And, again, if you -- well, I guess you can see
 8  the black dotted line, if you look at the substation, the
 9  S at the top, that's an existing approved location.  And
10  then the existing lines that were previously approved for
11  HV Sunrise go east from there and tie into the Delaney
12  Substation.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
14                MR. CROCKETT: So that's Prefiling
15  Exhibit 1.  And Prefiling Exhibit 2 shows the proposed
16  sign locations for notice of the hearing.  We're
17  proposing 18 signs at this point.  They're roughly
18  located about every mile, as you can see, so pretty large
19  area for this project, but also fairly remote.
20                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Well, Prefiling
21  1 and 2 are admitted.
22                All right.  Now, what are the affected
23  jurisdictions, then?
24                MR. CROCKETT: Affected jurisdictions are
25  Maricopa County.  So this project's located in
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 1  unincorporated Maricopa County.  So Maricopa County,
 2  Maricopa County of Transpor- --
 3                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, he froze for me.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah, he's frozen here too.
 5                MR. BEAN: He disappeared for me.  There he
 6  is.  He went black, the screen.
 7                THE REPORTER: Should we go off the record?
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah, let's go off the
 9  record until we can get him back on here.
10                (Recessed from 3:05 p.m. until 3:05 p.m.)
11                CHMN STAFFORD: Let's go back on the
12  record, then.
13                MR. CROCKETT: You were asking about
14  affected jurisdictions, and I -- did you catch the ones
15  that I listed?
16                CHMN STAFFORD: I got Maricopa County and
17  Maricopa County of Transportation.
18                MR. CROCKETT: Right.  Arizona State Land
19  Department, Harquahala Valley Irrigation District,
20  Harquahala Valley Fire District.
21                And, Dallas, am I missing any affected
22  jurisdictions?
23                MR. PUGH: I think you're good, Jeff.
24                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: So is it Harquahala Fire
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 1  and Harquahala Irrigation Districts?
 2                MR. CROCKETT: Correct.
 3                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.  We'll
 4  get the notice to them after you file.
 5                Okay.  And for the Notice of Hearing, are
 6  you going to publish in the Arizona Republic?
 7                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.  As well as the
 8  Glendale Star and the Daily Independent.  So we'll
 9  publish in three locations.
10                CHMN STAFFORD: And the Daily Independent,
11  you said?
12                THE WITNESS: Yes.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And you'll send me
14  the draft Notice of Hearing with the Word copy.
15                So what's the file date, the anticipated
16  file date for the application?
17                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, I'm just looking for
18  that.  Where is it?  Oh, my goodness.  It was here 10
19  seconds ago.  Is it June 17th?  I'll ask Matt or Dallas
20  to help me out on that.  I don't know why I can't find
21  my --
22                CHMN STAFFORD: What's the hearing date?
23                (Cross-talk.)
24                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, one at a time.
25                MR. CROCKETT: I've got it here.
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 1                Okay.  So the filing date is May 3rd.
 2  Prehearing conference, June 11th.  And hearing dates
 3  June 17 to 21.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And where is the
 5  hearing going to be held?
 6                MR. CROCKETT: At the Hampton Inn & Suites
 7  in Goodyear.  And we've already confirmed those dates are
 8  available there and we've locked it in.
 9                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So you'll have
10  lodging for the out-of-town Committee members?
11                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
12                CHMN STAFFORD: Now, what's the length of
13  this line?  It looks like 18 miles, about?
14                MR. CROCKETT: You know, I'm going to ask
15  maybe Dallas or Matt to re- -- maybe Dallas to respond to
16  that.
17                MR. PUGH: Thanks, Jeff.  Yeah, I believe
18  it's about 19 miles, in total.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Now, I'm guessing
20  we're probably unlikely to do a tour for this?
21                MR. CROCKETT: We'll be ready with a tour
22  map and itinerary, but I agree, I think it's probably
23  unlikely that we'd do a tour.  We will have -- we will
24  have a virtual tour to present to the committee.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: And this is pretty remote.
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 1  What's the -- there's no residences anywhere near this,
 2  correct?
 3                MR. CROCKETT: There are -- there are some
 4  residences, and maybe I'll let Dallas speak to that.
 5                MR. PUGH: There are a few residents
 6  located near the southwestern stretch, southwest corner
 7  of the loop.
 8                MR. BEAN: Yeah, it's very -- I'd say it's
 9  very scattered residences.  We've been in the process and
10  conducted quite a bit of work out here also for our
11  entitlements for the projects, but haven't received any
12  opposition.  So we're -- we anticipate the same here.  We
13  know a lot of our neighbors out here.
14                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  And you said
15  the -- what was the prehearing conference date?  It
16  was June 11th?
17                MR. CROCKETT: June 11th at 3:00 p.m.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And there's no
19  litigation or disputes.  File the application and draft
20  the procedural order and provide the draft CEC by the
21  prehearing conference.
22                Do you anticipate any public comment for
23  this?  You said there were some residences near, one at
24  the southwest corner of the project?
25                MR. CROCKETT: You know, you never know,
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 1  Chairman Stafford, on these.  I don't expect any public
 2  comment at this time, but certainly, you know, we'll be
 3  ready to receive it if it comes.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And do you
 5  anticipate any public officials coming into the hearing
 6  to make public comment?
 7                MR. CROCKETT: At this time we don't, no.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  And what are
 9  the permit status for the project?
10                MR. CROCKETT: Say -- I'm sorry, say that
11  again.
12                CHMN STAFFORD: Permit status.  I'm
13  assuming for the line you don't need a permit?
14                MR. CROCKETT: We will possibly need some
15  permitting.  I'll let Dallas Pugh respond to that.
16                MR. PUGH: Yeah, thanks, Jeff.  For the
17  public side itself we held a major --
18                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, Mr. Pugh, can you
19  slow down and speak a little clearer?
20                MR. PUGH: Sure.
21                So on April 26th, 2022, we held a major
22  comprehensive plan amendment and zone change
23  preapplication meeting.  And then on December 7th, 2022,
24  our major comprehensive plan amendment was approved by
25  Maricopa County.  The last stage in the land use
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 1  entitlements for the project are the zone change for
 2  overlay and plan of development.  We submitted that
 3  application in October of 2023.  We held our technical
 4  advisory committee meeting on December 19th, 2023.  We
 5  have an estimated approval by the Planning and Zoning
 6  Commission, estimated approval is June 13th of this year.
 7  And we'll be going to the Board of Supervisors for our
 8  final approval estimated July 24th, this year.
 9                MR. CROCKETT: And, Dallas, do you want to
10  briefly address Arizona State Land Department?
11                MR. PUGH: Yeah.
12                There is a possibility that we might be
13  crossing ASLD lands and we will continue to work with
14  them, should we have to cross ASLD land with our gen-tie.
15  But at this time we don't anticipate any approval needed,
16  but should we need one, we will coordinate closely with
17  them.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So you said there's
19  a possibility you may cross State Land?
20                MR. PUGH: Correct.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: But you might not?
22                MR. PUGH: Correct.
23                MR. CROCKETT: Yeah.  Chairman Stafford,
24  if --
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Hang on.
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 1                So the only permits that you have is the
 2  County -- is the plan amendment, and that was for --
 3  that's not for the line, that's for the solar project?
 4                MR. PUGH: Correct.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: But there's not a permit
 6  needed for the line itself, correct?
 7                MR. PUGH: Correct.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.
 9                Yes, Mr. Crockett?
10                MR. CROCKETT: No, I was just going to
11  elaborate a little.  I think that that will depend on
12  maybe which side of the street that the line winds up on.
13  If it's on one side it might -- it would require a State
14  Land Department permit; on the other side, it wouldn't.
15                MR. PUGH: That is correct.  Thanks, Jeff.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: And so I'm assuming you'll
17  have Peaks Audio for the hearing?
18                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.  We've already made
19  those arrangements.
20                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And what's the
21  filing for this, a thousand dollars?
22                MR. CROCKETT: It is a thousand, yes.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: And you know that the
24  Commission's obligated by the statute to pay the cost of
25  reporting and transcribing any application hearing, as
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 1  well as the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the
 2  Committee members in connection with participation in
 3  Committee meetings from the filing fee.  So the costs and
 4  fees exceeding the amount of the fee may, with the
 5  applicant's consent, be incurred by the Committee and
 6  charged to the applicant.
 7                Does the applicant consent to pay the
 8  Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?
 9                MR. CROCKETT: Yes.  And we will make
10  arrangements with the business office at the Arizona
11  Corporation Commission to take care of that.
12                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  You've got
13  three days for the transcripts.
14                Anything else that we need to be aware of
15  for the hearing or any other issues?
16                MR. CROCKETT: I can't think of anything.
17  Let me just quickly see if anyone else on our team -- if
18  there's anything else we need to raise today.
19                (No response.)
20                MR. CROCKETT: I don't think so.  I think
21  we're good.
22                CHMN STAFFORD: Is there anything else we
23  need, Tod?
24                MR. BREWER: No, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: We've got the locations of
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 1  the 18 signs, okay, excellent.
 2                Oh, yeah, one other thing.  What were going
 3  to be the publication dates?
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Well, that's a good
 5  question.  I typically work with Tod on that so that we
 6  get the form of the notice worked out ahead of the actual
 7  filing of the application, because, as you know, the time
 8  constraints are pretty tight.  So we'll make arrangements
 9  with the newspapers, probably provide them with a draft,
10  and then once the application is filed, we'll get your
11  signature on the notice and we'll update the newspapers,
12  so that we can meet the deadlines.  I think it's got to
13  be -- trying to remember if it's within 10 days -- the
14  first notice within 10 days after the application's
15  filed.  Pretty tight.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: And the second one has to
17  be done no later than 30 days prior to the hearing.
18                MR. CROCKETT: To the hearing.  Yeah, we're
19  aware of those timelines, and we'll make sure that we
20  meet them.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent.  All right.
22                Well, I don't have anything further.  I
23  think, Tod, you said you were good.
24                Robin, do you have anything you need?
25                THE REPORTER: No, I don't.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Thank you very
 2  much.  And with that, we'll go off the record.  Thank
 3  you.
 4                MR. CROCKETT: Thanks, Chairman Stafford.
 5                (The hearing concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
 6 
 7 
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 9 
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
    COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2 
   
 3 
              BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
 4  taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
    true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
 5  the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
    were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
 6  to print under my direction.
   
 7            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
    the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
 8  outcome hereof.
   
 9            I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
    obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206
10  (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
    23rd day of April, 2024.
11 
   
12 
   
13 
   
14                    ___________________________
                      ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR
15                    CA CSR No. 7750
                      AZ CR No. 50695
16 
   
17                      *   *   *   *   *
   
18            I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
    has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
19  ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
             _______________________________________
24               GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                 Registered Reporting Firm
25               Arizona RRF No. R1035
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now is the time set for the
  


 2   prefiling conference for the Harquahala Complex Project.
  


 3   I'll take appearances, please.
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman Stafford, good
  


 5   afternoon.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the
  


 6   future applicant, Harquahala Complex HoldCo, LLC, and
  


 7   we've got -- I'll just quickly introduce some of the
  


 8   folks from our team, Amanda Garlinghouse [sic], Garret
  


 9   Bean, Brian Lynch, Dallas Pugh, Brett Stroup and Teresa
  


10   O'Neil are from Kimley-Horn.  And did I get Brian Lynch?
  


11   Brian and Matt work together at Redwood Energy.  I think
  


12   that's everyone we're expecting.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And do you
  


14   expect any intervenors for this matter?
  


15                 MR. CROCKETT:  We do not.  This -- this
  


16   area, Chairman Stafford, you'll be very familiar with it.
  


17   Affiliates of Harquahala Complex, HV Sunrise, we had two
  


18   prior hearings, CECs 201 and 211 were issued for those
  


19   projects, and they're -- this project is adjacent to
  


20   those projects.  So we are very familiar with the area,
  


21   and do not anticipate at this time having intervenors.
  


22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Let's see, I do
  


23   have two exhibits, there's --
  


24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- Prefiling 1 and
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 1   Prefiling 2.  Would you like to --
  


 2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, for the record,
  


 3   Prefiling Exhibit 1 is the map of the proposed gen-tie
  


 4   route.  And, as you can see, it's outlined in green,
  


 5   Chairman Stafford.  It's really a looped line.  And so
  


 6   they're not alternative routes, that's -- that's one
  


 7   project.  And, again, if you -- well, I guess you can see
  


 8   the black dotted line, if you look at the substation, the
  


 9   S at the top, that's an existing approved location.  And
  


10   then the existing lines that were previously approved for
  


11   HV Sunrise go east from there and tie into the Delaney
  


12   Substation.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  So that's Prefiling
  


15   Exhibit 1.  And Prefiling Exhibit 2 shows the proposed
  


16   sign locations for notice of the hearing.  We're
  


17   proposing 18 signs at this point.  They're roughly
  


18   located about every mile, as you can see, so pretty large
  


19   area for this project, but also fairly remote.
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, Prefiling
  


21   1 and 2 are admitted.
  


22                 All right.  Now, what are the affected
  


23   jurisdictions, then?
  


24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Affected jurisdictions are
  


25   Maricopa County.  So this project's located in
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 1   unincorporated Maricopa County.  So Maricopa County,
  


 2   Maricopa County of Transpor- --
  


 3                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, he froze for me.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, he's frozen here too.
  


 5                 MR. BEAN:  He disappeared for me.  There he
  


 6   is.  He went black, the screen.
  


 7                 THE REPORTER:  Should we go off the record?
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, let's go off the
  


 9   record until we can get him back on here.
  


10                 (Recessed from 3:05 p.m. until 3:05 p.m.)
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go back on the
  


12   record, then.
  


13                 MR. CROCKETT:  You were asking about
  


14   affected jurisdictions, and I -- did you catch the ones
  


15   that I listed?
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I got Maricopa County and
  


17   Maricopa County of Transportation.
  


18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.  Arizona State Land
  


19   Department, Harquahala Valley Irrigation District,
  


20   Harquahala Valley Fire District.
  


21                 And, Dallas, am I missing any affected
  


22   jurisdictions?
  


23                 MR. PUGH:  I think you're good, Jeff.
  


24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So is it Harquahala Fire
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 1   and Harquahala Irrigation Districts?
  


 2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.
  


 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  We'll
  


 4   get the notice to them after you file.
  


 5                 Okay.  And for the Notice of Hearing, are
  


 6   you going to publish in the Arizona Republic?
  


 7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  As well as the
  


 8   Glendale Star and the Daily Independent.  So we'll
  


 9   publish in three locations.
  


10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the Daily Independent,
  


11   you said?
  


12                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you'll send me
  


14   the draft Notice of Hearing with the Word copy.
  


15                 So what's the file date, the anticipated
  


16   file date for the application?
  


17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah, I'm just looking for
  


18   that.  Where is it?  Oh, my goodness.  It was here 10
  


19   seconds ago.  Is it June 17th?  I'll ask Matt or Dallas
  


20   to help me out on that.  I don't know why I can't find
  


21   my --
  


22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What's the hearing date?
  


23                 (Cross-talk.)
  


24                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, one at a time.
  


25                 MR. CROCKETT:  I've got it here.
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 1                 Okay.  So the filing date is May 3rd.
  


 2   Prehearing conference, June 11th.  And hearing dates
  


 3   June 17 to 21.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And where is the
  


 5   hearing going to be held?
  


 6                 MR. CROCKETT:  At the Hampton Inn & Suites
  


 7   in Goodyear.  And we've already confirmed those dates are
  


 8   available there and we've locked it in.
  


 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you'll have
  


10   lodging for the out-of-town Committee members?
  


11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.
  


12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, what's the length of
  


13   this line?  It looks like 18 miles, about?
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, I'm going to ask
  


15   maybe Dallas or Matt to re- -- maybe Dallas to respond to
  


16   that.
  


17                 MR. PUGH:  Thanks, Jeff.  Yeah, I believe
  


18   it's about 19 miles, in total.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, I'm guessing
  


20   we're probably unlikely to do a tour for this?
  


21                 MR. CROCKETT:  We'll be ready with a tour
  


22   map and itinerary, but I agree, I think it's probably
  


23   unlikely that we'd do a tour.  We will have -- we will
  


24   have a virtual tour to present to the committee.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And this is pretty remote.
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 1   What's the -- there's no residences anywhere near this,
  


 2   correct?
  


 3                 MR. CROCKETT:  There are -- there are some
  


 4   residences, and maybe I'll let Dallas speak to that.
  


 5                 MR. PUGH:  There are a few residents
  


 6   located near the southwestern stretch, southwest corner
  


 7   of the loop.
  


 8                 MR. BEAN:  Yeah, it's very -- I'd say it's
  


 9   very scattered residences.  We've been in the process and
  


10   conducted quite a bit of work out here also for our
  


11   entitlements for the projects, but haven't received any
  


12   opposition.  So we're -- we anticipate the same here.  We
  


13   know a lot of our neighbors out here.
  


14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And you said
  


15   the -- what was the prehearing conference date?  It
  


16   was June 11th?
  


17                 MR. CROCKETT:  June 11th at 3:00 p.m.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And there's no
  


19   litigation or disputes.  File the application and draft
  


20   the procedural order and provide the draft CEC by the
  


21   prehearing conference.
  


22                 Do you anticipate any public comment for
  


23   this?  You said there were some residences near, one at
  


24   the southwest corner of the project?
  


25                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, you never know,
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 1   Chairman Stafford, on these.  I don't expect any public
  


 2   comment at this time, but certainly, you know, we'll be
  


 3   ready to receive it if it comes.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And do you
  


 5   anticipate any public officials coming into the hearing
  


 6   to make public comment?
  


 7                 MR. CROCKETT:  At this time we don't, no.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And what are
  


 9   the permit status for the project?
  


10                 MR. CROCKETT:  Say -- I'm sorry, say that
  


11   again.
  


12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Permit status.  I'm
  


13   assuming for the line you don't need a permit?
  


14                 MR. CROCKETT:  We will possibly need some
  


15   permitting.  I'll let Dallas Pugh respond to that.
  


16                 MR. PUGH:  Yeah, thanks, Jeff.  For the
  


17   public side itself we held a major --
  


18                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, Mr. Pugh, can you
  


19   slow down and speak a little clearer?
  


20                 MR. PUGH:  Sure.
  


21                 So on April 26th, 2022, we held a major
  


22   comprehensive plan amendment and zone change
  


23   preapplication meeting.  And then on December 7th, 2022,
  


24   our major comprehensive plan amendment was approved by
  


25   Maricopa County.  The last stage in the land use
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 1   entitlements for the project are the zone change for
  


 2   overlay and plan of development.  We submitted that
  


 3   application in October of 2023.  We held our technical
  


 4   advisory committee meeting on December 19th, 2023.  We
  


 5   have an estimated approval by the Planning and Zoning
  


 6   Commission, estimated approval is June 13th of this year.
  


 7   And we'll be going to the Board of Supervisors for our
  


 8   final approval estimated July 24th, this year.
  


 9                 MR. CROCKETT:  And, Dallas, do you want to
  


10   briefly address Arizona State Land Department?
  


11                 MR. PUGH:  Yeah.
  


12                 There is a possibility that we might be
  


13   crossing ASLD lands and we will continue to work with
  


14   them, should we have to cross ASLD land with our gen-tie.
  


15   But at this time we don't anticipate any approval needed,
  


16   but should we need one, we will coordinate closely with
  


17   them.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you said there's
  


19   a possibility you may cross State Land?
  


20                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  But you might not?
  


22                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.
  


23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  Chairman Stafford,
  


24   if --
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Hang on.
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 1                 So the only permits that you have is the
  


 2   County -- is the plan amendment, and that was for --
  


 3   that's not for the line, that's for the solar project?
  


 4                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  But there's not a permit
  


 6   needed for the line itself, correct?
  


 7                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.
  


 9                 Yes, Mr. Crockett?
  


10                 MR. CROCKETT:  No, I was just going to
  


11   elaborate a little.  I think that that will depend on
  


12   maybe which side of the street that the line winds up on.
  


13   If it's on one side it might -- it would require a State
  


14   Land Department permit; on the other side, it wouldn't.
  


15                 MR. PUGH:  That is correct.  Thanks, Jeff.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And so I'm assuming you'll
  


17   have Peaks Audio for the hearing?
  


18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  We've already made
  


19   those arrangements.
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what's the
  


21   filing for this, a thousand dollars?
  


22                 MR. CROCKETT:  It is a thousand, yes.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you know that the
  


24   Commission's obligated by the statute to pay the cost of
  


25   reporting and transcribing any application hearing, as
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 1   well as the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the
  


 2   Committee members in connection with participation in
  


 3   Committee meetings from the filing fee.  So the costs and
  


 4   fees exceeding the amount of the fee may, with the
  


 5   applicant's consent, be incurred by the Committee and
  


 6   charged to the applicant.
  


 7                 Does the applicant consent to pay the
  


 8   Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?
  


 9                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  And we will make
  


10   arrangements with the business office at the Arizona
  


11   Corporation Commission to take care of that.
  


12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  You've got
  


13   three days for the transcripts.
  


14                 Anything else that we need to be aware of
  


15   for the hearing or any other issues?
  


16                 MR. CROCKETT:  I can't think of anything.
  


17   Let me just quickly see if anyone else on our team -- if
  


18   there's anything else we need to raise today.
  


19                 (No response.)
  


20                 MR. CROCKETT:  I don't think so.  I think
  


21   we're good.
  


22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is there anything else we
  


23   need, Tod?
  


24                 MR. BREWER:  No, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We've got the locations of
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 1   the 18 signs, okay, excellent.
  


 2                 Oh, yeah, one other thing.  What were going
  


 3   to be the publication dates?
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Well, that's a good
  


 5   question.  I typically work with Tod on that so that we
  


 6   get the form of the notice worked out ahead of the actual
  


 7   filing of the application, because, as you know, the time
  


 8   constraints are pretty tight.  So we'll make arrangements
  


 9   with the newspapers, probably provide them with a draft,
  


10   and then once the application is filed, we'll get your
  


11   signature on the notice and we'll update the newspapers,
  


12   so that we can meet the deadlines.  I think it's got to
  


13   be -- trying to remember if it's within 10 days -- the
  


14   first notice within 10 days after the application's
  


15   filed.  Pretty tight.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the second one has to
  


17   be done no later than 30 days prior to the hearing.
  


18                 MR. CROCKETT:  To the hearing.  Yeah, we're
  


19   aware of those timelines, and we'll make sure that we
  


20   meet them.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  All right.
  


22                 Well, I don't have anything further.  I
  


23   think, Tod, you said you were good.
  


24                 Robin, do you have anything you need?
  


25                 THE REPORTER:  No, I don't.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Thank you very
  


 2   much.  And with that, we'll go off the record.  Thank
  


 3   you.
  


 4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thanks, Chairman Stafford.
  


 5                 (The hearing concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )


 2
  


 3
             BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were


 4   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
   true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to


 5   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced


 6   to print under my direction.
  


 7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the


 8   outcome hereof.
  


 9             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206


10   (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
   23rd day of April, 2024.


11
  


12
  


13
  


14                     ___________________________
                     ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR


15                     CA CSR No. 7750
                     AZ CR No. 50695


16
  


17                       *   *   *   *   *
  


18             I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
   has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in


19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
            _______________________________________


24                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                Registered Reporting Firm


25                Arizona RRF No. R1035
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           1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



           4   Committee, commencing at 3:00 p.m. on the 23rd day of



           5   April, 2024, with all participants appearing via



           6   videoconference.



           7



           8   BEFORE:  ADAM STAFFORD, Chairman



           9



          10   APPEARANCES:



          11   For the Applicant:



          12        CROCKETT LAW GROUP

                    By: Jeffrey Crockett

          13        2198 East Camelback Road, Suite 305

                    Phoenix, Arizona 85016

          14

               Also Present:

          15

                    Garret Bean, Copia Power

          16        Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford

                    Amanda Hamilton, Copia Power

          17        Matt Garlinghouse, Redwood Energy

                    Brian Lynch, Redwood Energy

          18        Teresa O'Neil, Kimley-Horn

                    Dallas Pugh, Copia Power

          19        Brett Stroup, Kimley-Horn
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now is the time set for the



           2   prefiling conference for the Harquahala Complex Project.



           3   I'll take appearances, please.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman Stafford, good



           5   afternoon.  Jeff Crockett, appearing on behalf of the



           6   future applicant, Harquahala Complex HoldCo, LLC, and



           7   we've got -- I'll just quickly introduce some of the



           8   folks from our team, Amanda Garlinghouse [sic], Garret



           9   Bean, Brian Lynch, Dallas Pugh, Brett Stroup and Teresa



          10   O'Neil are from Kimley-Horn.  And did I get Brian Lynch?



          11   Brian and Matt work together at Redwood Energy.  I think



          12   that's everyone we're expecting.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And do you



          14   expect any intervenors for this matter?



          15                 MR. CROCKETT:  We do not.  This -- this



          16   area, Chairman Stafford, you'll be very familiar with it.



          17   Affiliates of Harquahala Complex, HV Sunrise, we had two



          18   prior hearings, CECs 201 and 211 were issued for those



          19   projects, and they're -- this project is adjacent to



          20   those projects.  So we are very familiar with the area,



          21   and do not anticipate at this time having intervenors.



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Let's see, I do



          23   have two exhibits, there's --



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- Prefiling 1 and
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           1   Prefiling 2.  Would you like to --



           2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, for the record,



           3   Prefiling Exhibit 1 is the map of the proposed gen-tie



           4   route.  And, as you can see, it's outlined in green,



           5   Chairman Stafford.  It's really a looped line.  And so



           6   they're not alternative routes, that's -- that's one



           7   project.  And, again, if you -- well, I guess you can see



           8   the black dotted line, if you look at the substation, the



           9   S at the top, that's an existing approved location.  And



          10   then the existing lines that were previously approved for



          11   HV Sunrise go east from there and tie into the Delaney



          12   Substation.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  So that's Prefiling



          15   Exhibit 1.  And Prefiling Exhibit 2 shows the proposed



          16   sign locations for notice of the hearing.  We're



          17   proposing 18 signs at this point.  They're roughly



          18   located about every mile, as you can see, so pretty large



          19   area for this project, but also fairly remote.



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, Prefiling



          21   1 and 2 are admitted.



          22                 All right.  Now, what are the affected



          23   jurisdictions, then?



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Affected jurisdictions are



          25   Maricopa County.  So this project's located in
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           1   unincorporated Maricopa County.  So Maricopa County,



           2   Maricopa County of Transpor- --



           3                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, he froze for me.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, he's frozen here too.



           5                 MR. BEAN:  He disappeared for me.  There he



           6   is.  He went black, the screen.



           7                 THE REPORTER:  Should we go off the record?



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, let's go off the



           9   record until we can get him back on here.



          10                 (Recessed from 3:05 p.m. until 3:05 p.m.)



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go back on the



          12   record, then.



          13                 MR. CROCKETT:  You were asking about



          14   affected jurisdictions, and I -- did you catch the ones



          15   that I listed?



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I got Maricopa County and



          17   Maricopa County of Transportation.



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Right.  Arizona State Land



          19   Department, Harquahala Valley Irrigation District,



          20   Harquahala Valley Fire District.



          21                 And, Dallas, am I missing any affected



          22   jurisdictions?



          23                 MR. PUGH:  I think you're good, Jeff.



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So is it Harquahala Fire
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           1   and Harquahala Irrigation Districts?



           2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.



           3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  We'll



           4   get the notice to them after you file.



           5                 Okay.  And for the Notice of Hearing, are



           6   you going to publish in the Arizona Republic?



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  As well as the



           8   Glendale Star and the Daily Independent.  So we'll



           9   publish in three locations.



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the Daily Independent,



          11   you said?



          12                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you'll send me



          14   the draft Notice of Hearing with the Word copy.



          15                 So what's the file date, the anticipated



          16   file date for the application?



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah, I'm just looking for



          18   that.  Where is it?  Oh, my goodness.  It was here 10



          19   seconds ago.  Is it June 17th?  I'll ask Matt or Dallas



          20   to help me out on that.  I don't know why I can't find



          21   my --



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  What's the hearing date?



          23                 (Cross-talk.)



          24                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, one at a time.



          25                 MR. CROCKETT:  I've got it here.
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           1                 Okay.  So the filing date is May 3rd.



           2   Prehearing conference, June 11th.  And hearing dates



           3   June 17 to 21.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And where is the



           5   hearing going to be held?



           6                 MR. CROCKETT:  At the Hampton Inn & Suites



           7   in Goodyear.  And we've already confirmed those dates are



           8   available there and we've locked it in.



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you'll have



          10   lodging for the out-of-town Committee members?



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, what's the length of



          13   this line?  It looks like 18 miles, about?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, I'm going to ask



          15   maybe Dallas or Matt to re- -- maybe Dallas to respond to



          16   that.



          17                 MR. PUGH:  Thanks, Jeff.  Yeah, I believe



          18   it's about 19 miles, in total.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, I'm guessing



          20   we're probably unlikely to do a tour for this?



          21                 MR. CROCKETT:  We'll be ready with a tour



          22   map and itinerary, but I agree, I think it's probably



          23   unlikely that we'd do a tour.  We will have -- we will



          24   have a virtual tour to present to the committee.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And this is pretty remote.
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           1   What's the -- there's no residences anywhere near this,



           2   correct?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  There are -- there are some



           4   residences, and maybe I'll let Dallas speak to that.



           5                 MR. PUGH:  There are a few residents



           6   located near the southwestern stretch, southwest corner



           7   of the loop.



           8                 MR. BEAN:  Yeah, it's very -- I'd say it's



           9   very scattered residences.  We've been in the process and



          10   conducted quite a bit of work out here also for our



          11   entitlements for the projects, but haven't received any



          12   opposition.  So we're -- we anticipate the same here.  We



          13   know a lot of our neighbors out here.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And you said



          15   the -- what was the prehearing conference date?  It



          16   was June 11th?



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  June 11th at 3:00 p.m.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And there's no



          19   litigation or disputes.  File the application and draft



          20   the procedural order and provide the draft CEC by the



          21   prehearing conference.



          22                 Do you anticipate any public comment for



          23   this?  You said there were some residences near, one at



          24   the southwest corner of the project?



          25                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, you never know,
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           1   Chairman Stafford, on these.  I don't expect any public



           2   comment at this time, but certainly, you know, we'll be



           3   ready to receive it if it comes.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And do you



           5   anticipate any public officials coming into the hearing



           6   to make public comment?



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  At this time we don't, no.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And what are



           9   the permit status for the project?



          10                 MR. CROCKETT:  Say -- I'm sorry, say that



          11   again.



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Permit status.  I'm



          13   assuming for the line you don't need a permit?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  We will possibly need some



          15   permitting.  I'll let Dallas Pugh respond to that.



          16                 MR. PUGH:  Yeah, thanks, Jeff.  For the



          17   public side itself we held a major --



          18                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, Mr. Pugh, can you



          19   slow down and speak a little clearer?



          20                 MR. PUGH:  Sure.



          21                 So on April 26th, 2022, we held a major



          22   comprehensive plan amendment and zone change



          23   preapplication meeting.  And then on December 7th, 2022,



          24   our major comprehensive plan amendment was approved by



          25   Maricopa County.  The last stage in the land use
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           1   entitlements for the project are the zone change for



           2   overlay and plan of development.  We submitted that



           3   application in October of 2023.  We held our technical



           4   advisory committee meeting on December 19th, 2023.  We



           5   have an estimated approval by the Planning and Zoning



           6   Commission, estimated approval is June 13th of this year.



           7   And we'll be going to the Board of Supervisors for our



           8   final approval estimated July 24th, this year.



           9                 MR. CROCKETT:  And, Dallas, do you want to



          10   briefly address Arizona State Land Department?



          11                 MR. PUGH:  Yeah.



          12                 There is a possibility that we might be



          13   crossing ASLD lands and we will continue to work with



          14   them, should we have to cross ASLD land with our gen-tie.



          15   But at this time we don't anticipate any approval needed,



          16   but should we need one, we will coordinate closely with



          17   them.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So you said there's



          19   a possibility you may cross State Land?



          20                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  But you might not?



          22                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  Chairman Stafford,



          24   if --



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Hang on.
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           1                 So the only permits that you have is the



           2   County -- is the plan amendment, and that was for --



           3   that's not for the line, that's for the solar project?



           4                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  But there's not a permit



           6   needed for the line itself, correct?



           7                 MR. PUGH:  Correct.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.



           9                 Yes, Mr. Crockett?



          10                 MR. CROCKETT:  No, I was just going to



          11   elaborate a little.  I think that that will depend on



          12   maybe which side of the street that the line winds up on.



          13   If it's on one side it might -- it would require a State



          14   Land Department permit; on the other side, it wouldn't.



          15                 MR. PUGH:  That is correct.  Thanks, Jeff.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And so I'm assuming you'll



          17   have Peaks Audio for the hearing?



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  We've already made



          19   those arrangements.



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what's the



          21   filing for this, a thousand dollars?



          22                 MR. CROCKETT:  It is a thousand, yes.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you know that the



          24   Commission's obligated by the statute to pay the cost of



          25   reporting and transcribing any application hearing, as
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           1   well as the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the



           2   Committee members in connection with participation in



           3   Committee meetings from the filing fee.  So the costs and



           4   fees exceeding the amount of the fee may, with the



           5   applicant's consent, be incurred by the Committee and



           6   charged to the applicant.



           7                 Does the applicant consent to pay the



           8   Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?



           9                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  And we will make



          10   arrangements with the business office at the Arizona



          11   Corporation Commission to take care of that.



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  You've got



          13   three days for the transcripts.



          14                 Anything else that we need to be aware of



          15   for the hearing or any other issues?



          16                 MR. CROCKETT:  I can't think of anything.



          17   Let me just quickly see if anyone else on our team -- if



          18   there's anything else we need to raise today.



          19                 (No response.)



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  I don't think so.  I think



          21   we're good.



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is there anything else we



          23   need, Tod?



          24                 MR. BREWER:  No, thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We've got the locations of
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           1   the 18 signs, okay, excellent.



           2                 Oh, yeah, one other thing.  What were going



           3   to be the publication dates?



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Well, that's a good



           5   question.  I typically work with Tod on that so that we



           6   get the form of the notice worked out ahead of the actual



           7   filing of the application, because, as you know, the time



           8   constraints are pretty tight.  So we'll make arrangements



           9   with the newspapers, probably provide them with a draft,



          10   and then once the application is filed, we'll get your



          11   signature on the notice and we'll update the newspapers,



          12   so that we can meet the deadlines.  I think it's got to



          13   be -- trying to remember if it's within 10 days -- the



          14   first notice within 10 days after the application's



          15   filed.  Pretty tight.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the second one has to



          17   be done no later than 30 days prior to the hearing.



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  To the hearing.  Yeah, we're



          19   aware of those timelines, and we'll make sure that we



          20   meet them.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  All right.



          22                 Well, I don't have anything further.  I



          23   think, Tod, you said you were good.



          24                 Robin, do you have anything you need?



          25                 THE REPORTER:  No, I don't.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Thank you very



           2   much.  And with that, we'll go off the record.  Thank



           3   you.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thanks, Chairman Stafford.



           5                 (The hearing concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
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           1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )

               COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )

           2



           3

                         BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were

           4   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

               true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to

           5   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

               were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

           6   to print under my direction.



           7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of

               the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

           8   outcome hereof.



           9             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

               obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206

          10   (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this

               23rd day of April, 2024.

          11



          12



          13



          14                     ___________________________

                                 ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR

          15                     CA CSR No. 7750

                                 AZ CR No. 50695

          16



          17                       *   *   *   *   *



          18             I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,

               has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in

          19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).



          20
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          23

                        _______________________________________

          24                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

                            Registered Reporting Firm

          25                Arizona RRF No. R1035
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